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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: The Committee on

          3  Finance and Health is back in session. Let me,

          4  before I ask Yohance to call people up, what we are

          5  going to do is we will call up five people to sit

          6  and either, you know, allow you to speak. The only

          7  thing I ask you to do is, that while I will not stop

          8  someone from speaking that has a prepared remark,

          9  please try to limit your speaking to the three

         10  minutes.

         11                 If in the event you hear the buzzer

         12  go off, again, don't let me stop you and just say

         13  wrap up, because if you keep going then I am going

         14  to do that, and this way everybody who signed up

         15  will speak, and everybody cannot say that I favored

         16  one over the other.

         17                 Now, having said that, Yohance, do

         18  you want to use that and then call them.

         19                 MR. MAQUBELA: Debbie Bell, Rubin

         20  Schaffer, Ray Brescia, Sal Gorelick and Hulie White,

         21  Jr.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now, the other

         23  thing that I need you to remember, like I said

         24  inside to the President and to anybody testifying,

         25  we do not have a stenographer everything is taped,
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          2  so I ask that you individually speak into the mic

          3  and identify yourself for the record and then

          4  proceed with your testimony.

          5                 Push the button.

          6                 MS. BELL: If I may, Mr. Chairman,

          7  allow me to introduce the people who are sitting

          8  here, which is not congruent with the list that was

          9  read off.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Go ahead.

         11                 MS. BELL: I am Deborah Bell, I am an

         12  Assistant to the Administrator, DC 37, AFSCME.

         13                 To my left is Patricia Brooks, who is

         14  Division Director of the Hospital Division at DC 37,

         15  AFSCME. She is not going to testify. She is here

         16  with me. As is Michelle Trusta, from our Research

         17  and Negotiations Department.

         18                 Further down the panel is Mr. Hulie

         19  White, Chapter Chairperson of the Brooklyn Central

         20  Laundry Chapter of Local 420, DC 37, AFSCME. And at

         21  the end is Sol Gorelick, from the Retirees

         22  Association at DC 37, AFSCME, and the Coney Island

         23  Coalition.

         24                 Now, if I may, good afternoon. I am

         25  here on behalf of 125,000 member of DC 37 to let the
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          2  Health Committee know that HHC is at a crossroads,

          3  and we feel it is the City Council's responsibility

          4  to make HHC take the right road, and we are

          5  encouraged, Mr. Chairman and Committee members, at

          6  the questions you raised this afternoon with the HHC

          7  President, in helping him try to find that road.

          8                 Every year HHC leaders come before

          9  this Committee to talk about their budget, but as

         10  you have experienced, instead of forthright

         11  discussion about the effect of years of budgetary

         12  erosion or abandonment by the Administration, they

         13  talk about the benefits of cutting, cutting,

         14  cutting, or euthanasia, for HHC.

         15                 Frankly, it is the labor movement and

         16  the community advocates who must always plead HHC's

         17  case. We are the ones who celebrate HHC's mission to

         18  serve all patients, regardless of their ability to

         19  pay. And we know firsthand the immeasurably value of

         20  serving the poor, uninsured, indigent and

         21  undocumented.

         22                 More than one in four City residents

         23  under the age of 65 are uninsured right now and they

         24  cannot afford to lose HHC, and quite frankly,

         25  neither can the rest of the residents of this City.
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          2                 We have seen the positive results of

          3  HHC's asthma programs, while baby care, AIDS

          4  services, women's health outreach and countless

          5  other services that bring health to people who would

          6  never otherwise have it.

          7                 According to the United Hospital Fund

          8  data, HHC provides 71 percent of all uninsured

          9  hospital visits in New York City.

         10                 The bottom line is HHC needs proper

         11  funding to continue these essential services.

         12                 But how productive are our efforts if

         13  the Administration doesn't think HHC has a role to

         14  play in our City, or if HHC itself does not have a

         15  clear comprehensive vision of its future. Hospital

         16  and clinic workers and, yes, even off-site managers

         17  actually care about the jobs they do and the people

         18  they serve, but it is not clear that HHC and City

         19  administrators care.

         20                 We recognize that HHC runs some

         21  exceptional programs, and is in the process of

         22  developing new ones such as the Small Businesses

         23  Insurance Program, to allow small businesses to

         24  afford discounted policies for their workers, and

         25  link those workers to HHC facilities for care.
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          2                 On the other hand, HHC is not

          3  properly supporting or coordinating the services of

          4  the former Department of Health Clinic that were

          5  absorbed into HHC in 1997.

          6                 We are here today to outline the

          7  first steps of a municipal health care roadmap HHC

          8  and the City Council should embrace, if we all want

          9  to continue to work together for a healthier New

         10  York.

         11                 Point number one, and you have heard

         12  us on this before, before we can begin this journey

         13  we need to come together and keep Brooklyn Central

         14  Laundry in HHC's hands and take HHC's privatization

         15  plans off the table.

         16                 Selling laundry services to an

         17  unreliable company that will do the laundry in

         18  Philadelphia, Albany, Edison, New Jersey and Boston,

         19  is one of the most nearsighted, illogical, and

         20  misguided concepts we have ever seen, and we have

         21  told you at great length the problems about that

         22  plan.

         23                 The City Council can show its

         24  commitment to developing a new roadmap for HHC by

         25  ensuring that the Brooklyn Central Laundry gets
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          2  proper capital funding to purchase modern equipment

          3  and update its plan.

          4                 We estimate that the laundry needs

          5  1.6 million in capital funds to do this. If all or

          6  even part of this amount can be dedicated by the

          7  City Council, we can work together to create a

          8  productive, efficient laundry service here in New

          9  York City.

         10                 Instead, forcing Brooklyn to lose $8

         11  million in revenue because of lost jobs, or to risk

         12  crippling the hospitals for lack of clean and

         13  sterile linen.

         14                 Point two in our roadmap is that a

         15  significant effect of the budgetary erosion you do

         16  not hear about from HHC, is the widespread

         17  understaffing in hospitals and clinics.

         18                 You have talked to the HHC President

         19  this afternoon about your concerns about the layoffs

         20  or workforce reductions he has said he will need to

         21  take over the next few years.

         22                 Part of what we need to do, what you

         23  need to do is restore the funding HHC needs to pay

         24  for collective bargaining increases at HHC.

         25  Withholding these funds continues a downward spiral
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          2  of staff reduction service cuts, underutilization

          3  and consequently more staff reductions.

          4                 You notice in the way the HHC

          5  president answered your questions about where he is

          6  going, he said, well, what we choose to do will be

          7  the function of utilization, a very passive

          8  response. We have to make HHC proactive in providing

          9  care, make sure they have enough staff to be

         10  proactive in providing care in this City.

         11                 According to the financial plan, the

         12  City saved $89 million by not funding HHC's

         13  collective bargaining increases in FY '99, and will

         14  save $191 million in FY 2000, a cost based on data

         15  and work force that is much larger than it is

         16  today.  If we restore funding for the collective

         17  bargaining increases that can be based on a smaller

         18  workforce, because the workforce has shrunk.

         19                 Whether this Administration admits it

         20  or not, HHC employees are still City employees,

         21  covered by the same personnel rules and regulations

         22  and collective bargaining agreements of other City

         23  employees. Their salaries are the City's

         24  responsibility. The City no longer provides a tax

         25  levy subsidy for HHC, they should start by funding
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          2  the raises that the City made HHC commit to, which

          3  brings us to our next point - the long-term funding

          4  of HHC.

          5                 Ultimately when it comes to HHC, the

          6  City is the worst deadbeat dad imaginable. It hasn't

          7  supported HHC for over five years. It pulls out all

          8  the stops to avoid making any types of direct

          9  payments, but it will not share control of HHC's

         10  budget with the City Council or the State. Even

         11  though the Administration is enjoying a

         12  multi-million dollar surplus, it does want to spend

         13  the money on a new baseball stadium or commuter

         14  rail, instead of making regular support payments for

         15  services to the uninsured, poor and indigent.

         16                 Indirect payments to HHC via the

         17  Medicaid Program are not sufficient. The City should

         18  revitalize a direct payment system to HHC, and we

         19  propose starting at $100 million per year. This is

         20  not even what HHC spends in a month. It is barely

         21  five percent of HHC's annual budget. But it will

         22  provide the seed money and stability to maintain

         23  HHC's level of service and dedicated staff, and

         24  particularly give them the growing number of

         25  uninsured.
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          2                 The bottom line is not just about

          3  HHC's bottom line, it is about service and

          4  responsibility and I think you committed that

          5  message to the president today and we support you in

          6  that, all the Committee members, but we must keep

          7  pushing further, which is why we brought to you some

          8  concrete recommendations on how the budget can move

          9  us down the road to preserving HHC.

         10                 It is not about a vision of public

         11  health care that needs commitment by the City

         12  Council, it is the Administration and HHC leaders

         13  who lack that vision. We, the union, want to be part

         14  of that vision, and in order to turn that into

         15  reality, we need funding and financial stability for

         16  HHC and commitment by all levels of government to

         17  its mission.

         18                 Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Yes, I don't

         20  normally do this, but I must be candid, because

         21  those, especially you, who have dealt with me before

         22  and DC 37, let me tell you that I have to say what I

         23  have to say.

         24                 First of all, I am not putting one

         25  cent into any budget of collective bargaining unless
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          2  I have a role, because the problem I have with

          3  collective bargaining is that you all go into a

          4  room, you cut out the deal and then we get caught

          5  with paying the bills, so I look at it along with

          6  the Council as an institution is also a player in

          7  this, because that is what has happened in the past.

          8                 Second, I must tell you, and I am

          9  getting frustrated not only on this side, if you saw

         10  inside what I did, we better stop talking about HHC,

         11  and we better start putting our money where our

         12  mouth is.

         13                 There are 51 members of the Council,

         14  we better start looking at these catchment areas and

         15  who represents who, because I am tired, before I

         16  became Chairman of this Committee, and I sit in a

         17  room where the budget is being discussed, and I will

         18  tell you, HHC is not, has not been a priority. And I

         19  want to point out that that is why I said inside

         20  there, one year it got so bad that we had to put $75

         21  million as a subsidy and four years has come and

         22  gone, and I must tell you, it came and it is gone,

         23  and it was this Council and this Committee and this

         24  Chair working with the person I see sitting out

         25  there, Judy Wessler, okay? That then we put the $5.5
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          2  million into this budget.

          3                 Now, you are not going to get $75

          4  million, with all due respect like I said, and I

          5  commended you when you came here with Lee Saunders,

          6  and I said, you know, this is the most beautiful

          7  thing I have seen in quite some time, when we come

          8  together as a people, and I say it again. You better

          9  go back to what you were, you better tell

         10  politicians you want my support, now I ask the

         11  question that Mary Pinkett asked the President, you

         12  want my support? What are you going to do for me?

         13  When you start doing that, then they will respect

         14  the labor union again.

         15                 So I have to say, because I took over

         16  and I became the Chairman of this Committee, because

         17  I wasn't happy the direction this Committee was

         18  going when it came to health care, and I gave up the

         19  Chairmanship of Youth Services that I turned it into

         20  a viable committee, because I have sat on this

         21  Committee for 14 years and I know what we can do,

         22  but I am not going to put any of my members on this

         23  Committee, and mind you, please, I have nine

         24  members, eight members, because one became a judge,

         25  but there were eight members and you can count who
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          2  sat there throughout the whole thing.

          3                 Now, if you can't get eight members,

          4  then I have to tell you right now, I would like to

          5  see you -- because you need 26 votes to pass the

          6  budget.

          7                 So, I had to say that, and in the

          8  spirit of working together, because I really welcome

          9  this new spirit of working together, and I know when

         10  I first got endorsed by DC 37 back in 1978 when I

         11  first ran for the State Assembly, I have

         12  consistently in every election always respected

         13  those who were there when I needed them. I must tell

         14  you, you better go back to doing that.

         15                 I am committed. Let me tell you where

         16  I am committed. Oh, yes, he cut out 5.5, that is

         17  going to go back into the budget whether you like it

         18  or not. But if you want more money, then you better

         19  start lobbying 49, 50 other members, and exclude the

         20  ones here, because they are here, because a lot of

         21  the people who, hospitals and workers -- and, you

         22  know, folks, the other thing is this: They may not

         23  have a hospital in their district, but a lot of

         24  youth live in their district, you are their

         25  constituents. Because I have people thinking that
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          2  because they don't have an HHC facility they don't

          3  have to do nothing. Excuse me. Not all the workers

          4  come out of the areas of Woodhull Hospital. I got

          5  people coming out of all over the place working at

          6  Woodhull Hospital, I even got people going from New

          7  Jersey, but that is not here or there.

          8                 So, I want to be clear, I had to say

          9  it as a chairman, because I am committed, folks, to

         10  work with you. I am committed to go back to what we

         11  used to do. Please don't put the pressure on me if

         12  we are not ready to do it both ways.

         13                 Now, I guess your text must have

         14  really did something because the first time, not

         15  only as the Chairman, but now Council Member Clarke

         16  and then Harrison.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I think the

         18  Chairperson has said half of what I was about to

         19  say. Everybody likes the union at election time.

         20  Everybody comes before the union at election time.

         21  When the rubber hits the road, and we need the help,

         22  we don't get the help. The Chair has already told

         23  you what the process is about when we get in the

         24  room and start negotiating and who wants what where

         25  in their borough, in their district and then HHC
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          2  doesn't come anymore.

          3                 I remember one year when the black

          4  and Latino Caucus let me go on the record of

          5  negotiating $10 million, and we were told we would

          6  get it if we can say how we are going to use the

          7  money, for what programs, because they were not

          8  going to give the $10 million in the budget without

          9  our saying, Annette Robinson, Robles, myself and

         10  Council Member what's his name from the Bronx, with

         11  the pencil and paper, the accountant, Council Member

         12  Warden. We stayed in a room, we brought down the

         13  money, and Virginia Fields, we stayed in a room, we

         14  brought down the money based on the hospital, when

         15  we got back somebody run in and said look what those

         16  black and latinos do, you can't let them take credit

         17  for it, you have to say we all did it. And, so, half

         18  of our money went to places where we didn't think,

         19  Neponsit that they just knocked down, got a whole

         20  big piece of my money out of Kings County Hospital.

         21                 So, again, my Chair has already told

         22  you, when the rubber hits the road and

         23  accountability needs to take place is where you talk

         24  to whom you elect, and, yes, I am fighting for the

         25  laundry because it is in the 40th District, but you
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          2  need more than one, two, three, four, five of us to

          3  get it done. You need everybody to get it done.

          4                 Bottom line, you may be in court, and

          5  you may win. We may put the money in because we put

          6  a lot of money into a lot of things that end up not

          7  being spent. So we may put the money and we may come

          8  out, shake hands and say, hooray we have restored,

          9  and then they find a way not to spend the dollars if

         10  they want to choke it to death, which is what they

         11  are trying to do, is to choke the municipal hospital

         12  to death, so that some voluntary can bid for it,

         13  take over, and decide who works there. And so please

         14  know that this is not a short-term commitment, you

         15  have to be in there for the last penny.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member

         18  Harrison.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: Yes. I just

         20  want to carry through on the tone that has been set

         21  by my colleagues, and that is to say that this

         22  issue, I think, should be not necessarily as a fight

         23  for money, it is a political issue, it is a

         24  philosophical division of the house. The City

         25  Council members, at least those of us who are on
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          2  this chair, on this table, are convinced that the

          3  City has an obligation to maintain and keep going

          4  the best system we can through the Health and

          5  Hospitals Corporation. That is not an opinion that I

          6  believe is shared by the Mayor, nor the

          7  Administration in this City. The Administration has

          8  been trying to get rid of its responsibility to

          9  people and every damn thing they have done has been

         10  in that direction.

         11                 First they tried to privatize, the

         12  court said you can't. Then they tried to gut, and

         13  that was the Harlem Hospital where they were digging

         14  out the people and firing them left and right,

         15  reducing the service and diminishing the goodness of

         16  the hospital itself. And then they threw the old

         17  people out of the Neponsit Service, they threw them

         18  out. The issue to me is very clear, they want to

         19  shuck themselves of the responsibility they have to

         20  work for the people in this City, and so it is not

         21  just simply do we give them $60 million or $120

         22  million or how ever many millions, that is no longer

         23  the issue, it is a part of, it is not the focus. And

         24  the focus has to be political, as our Chair has

         25  said, and as Una has said, it has to be political,
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          2  it has to be philosophical and it has to be very,

          3  very clearly understood that we are in a fight

          4  between two political, philosophical considerations,

          5  one is for the people, the other is not for the

          6  people, and that is where I see it coming down.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

          9  much.

         10                 MS. BELL: May I respond?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Sure.

         12                 MS. BELL: Because I am very

         13  encouraged by your responses.

         14                 We agree with you. We went back from

         15  the last Committee hearing that was focused

         16  specifically on the laundry. I assume that many of

         17  you have gotten calls and letters from our members

         18  --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: We have not.

         20                 MS. BELL: You have not?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: Never once.

         22                 MS. BELL: We have reached out to all

         23  our members. I have been told by other Councilpeople

         24  and by Borough Presidents --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: Maybe some
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          2  of the others did.

          3                 MS. BELL: I am happy to know this,

          4  Council Member Harrison, that, you know, you have

          5  begun to feel some of the response. We have met with

          6  people other than the members of the Health

          7  Committee at the recommendation of the Health

          8  Committee Chairman, to spread the message beyond

          9  simply the Health Committee and we are following the

         10  advice you have given us, because we agree this is a

         11  political fight.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But I think the

         13  point is, because I am beyond the Central Laundry

         14  because the tragedy is we tend to react only when a

         15  crisis.

         16                 I think the point is that right now

         17  when I look at this plan, there is not one cent for

         18  HHC. So today is Central Laundry because that is the

         19  issue at hand. Did you hear what he just said? He

         20  said that this year alone, 500 hospital workers will

         21  cease to exist. He said that the next three years --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: He didn't

         23  say three years, he said several years.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: No, no, no,

         25  listen to what I am saying. At least in his
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          2  testimony.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: His

          4  testimony did not say three years. It says

          5  thereafter, he left it open.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I know what he

          7  responded. Please, I may be getting old, but I

          8  remember. I am just trying to set the tone because

          9  for me, as the Chairman of this Committee, I am

         10  saddened that today is Central Laundry, but this is

         11  not about Central Laundry, this is about HHC. I

         12  mean, the man said that in the Year 2002, from

         13  36,000 workers he will be down to 32, and then he

         14  went on to say, that is where the several years,

         15  because I tried to pinpoint him, figuring that maybe

         16  after you get resolved for the $60 million it stops,

         17  that is when he said about several.

         18                 So, their plan is regardless of what

         19  the legal actions may be, whether it is the nursing

         20  home, whether it is the loss we have, the mentality

         21  is about they don't support public facility, they

         22  are about privatizing.

         23                 So, as the Chairman, I have to look

         24  at the overall picture that says right now, when the

         25  Department of Health wants to stop doing what they
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          2  used to, like the clinics. They say, oh, we are

          3  transferring to HHC, and once it gets to HHC because

          4  it is a Corporation, no longer a mail agency, then

          5  they will find a way of also eliminating the

          6  clinics.

          7                 So, I want to be clear, and again --

          8                 MR. BELL: We are all on the same

          9  side.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: The spirit that I

         11  am seeing, I want to be clear, it cannot be just the

         12  members of the Central Laundry calling us, it is all

         13  of HHC within your system because I heard that

         14  almost three, to 4,000 City workers will cease to

         15  exist for the Year 2002.

         16                 So, it has to be the environmental

         17  people that used to be called porters. It has to be

         18  the clerks, the hospital police, all the components.

         19  And if you don't get Council members, and I don't

         20  get three out of five delegations to set as a

         21  priority that subsidy, okay, that I am telling you

         22  that all I am going to do is restore 5.5 and that is

         23  because one or two people who are sitting here

         24  today, along with someone who is sitting out there,

         25  you know, I was not going to let this fiscal year we
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          2  are in now go without restoring something, and you

          3  can see now that 5.5 is coming back.

          4                 So I want to be clear that I think

          5  the issue is bigger than just simply what is at

          6  hand, it is the future of workers. And I am just

          7  saying to you, I hope you begin to flex your muscle

          8  and not let people say to you, oh, I am with you.

          9  And I don't even go to press conferences. I need

         10  them to be in the room when it comes to deciding

         11  where the money gets spent.

         12                 MS. BELL: We agree with you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         14                 MS. BELL: And quite frankly, the

         15  reason we are put -- well, Council Member Harrison

         16  has a point of this is not just about money, it is

         17  about politics. I mean, I agree with her on that.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: And

         19  philosophy.

         20                 MS. BELL: And philosophy. But it is

         21  also about we have to define the roadmaps and we are

         22  talking about the budget, and in the context of the

         23  budget we have to talk about dollar figures,

         24  because, believe me, Mr. Chairperson, we know, we

         25  hear from the members every day, the members are
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          2  worried, they are scared, they know they can't do

          3  their jobs as it is, what is going to happen.

          4                 There are two kinds of being scared,

          5  there is being scared because you are going to lose

          6  your job because you are now the most junior person;

          7  there is also the being scared that the three

          8  people, the three other people who do your job are

          9  going to get laid off and you are going to have to

         10  do the work now of ten people, instead of the work

         11  of three people. Believe me, we hear about this

         12  every day.

         13                 We are here today to talk about more

         14  than the laundry, to talk about the system, and we

         15  agree, we need to engage, and quite frankly, you

         16  will hear DC 37 doing this more and more.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I hope you sit

         18  downstairs, and any time any Council Member goes

         19  through those gates, like you used to do, you corner

         20  them and you do like you used to do.

         21                 MS. BELL: We will do that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Because the point

         23  I am saying is, and I am saying honestly, there are

         24  members who have been turned off who have burned for

         25  what they did, because after we did what we were
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          2  supposed to do on this side through collective

          3  bargaining and through agreement, which we were not

          4  part of, we got burned. So I don't want to use the

          5  past for the future.

          6                 MS. BELL: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So what I am

          8  saying, I repeat, in the spirit of seeing new blood

          9  and new spirit in DC 37, I am suggesting that you go

         10  back to what you -- and I have only to speak for

         11  myself, what you meant to me some 20 years ago, when

         12  I first came to you in 1978 and you were one of the

         13  first unions to support me, and since 1979, that I

         14  took my seat in Albany and I was on the Health

         15  Committee, and the 14 years that I have been here

         16  before I became Chairman, I dare say that I have not

         17  been one who forgot from whence I got my support.

         18                 My frustration is that I do not have

         19  the other numbers I need, so I negotiate the HHC

         20  budget because it is not a mail agency, I need you

         21  all to go back and talk about restoring the subsidy

         22  that would across the Board help all of the hospital

         23  workers, because everyone is very important. That is

         24  all I am saying.

         25                 MR. BELL: And we appreciate your
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          2  suggestion and that is what our proposed $100

          3  million is about sir.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well, okay.

          5                 Who is next?

          6                 MR. WHITE: Hello. My name is Hulie

          7  White, Jr., I am the Chairman of Brooklyn Central

          8  Laundry.

          9                 I sat in the next room and I listened

         10  to Marcos do his dedication and try to explain

         11  certain point of views. No one in there that said

         12  their remarks, no one said in a vacuum, they do not

         13  know anything about the linen business, none of

         14  them. Because Monday we sat down with the Health and

         15  Hospitals Corporation and the City,  we wound up

         16  finding out, the City admitted they have $2 million

         17  that they could invest in Brooklyn Central Laundry.

         18  They got in an argument on the other side of the

         19  table because we found out and they brought it up in

         20  the conversation.

         21                 So, the Director of Brooklyn Central

         22  Laundry, his name is Mr. Charles Smith, said we do

         23  not need $2 million, we could use less to do the

         24  repairs. So, when he was specifying his thoughts,

         25  they kicked him underneath the table to tell him to
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          2  stop talking.

          3                 You know, they got a gab order on

          4  Charlie Smith. He is the Director. He is the only

          5  person that sits on the other side of the table that

          6  we could sit down with and make a reasonable

          7  five-year plan with Brooklyn Central Laundry to keep

          8  running and keep functioning. No one else in the

          9  Health and Hospitals Corporation, no one on the City

         10  Board can specify and know about the laundry. How do

         11  you take another man, his name is Ed Jackson, he

         12  comes from Off Track Betting, he lost his job from

         13  there for doing bad translations. Now you put this

         14  man in the head of Brooklyn Central Laundry

         15  Department and doing the bid for the laundry.

         16                 Now, here is a man that has a bad

         17  track record. The man picked up and gave a job to.

         18  Now he is oversearing to get rid of Brooklyn Central

         19  Laundry for all means necessary. These are 200

         20  people. This is not no walk in the park. You are

         21  taking $8 million out of the neighborhood. The

         22  neighborhood needs $8 million to stay in so they can

         23  flourish.

         24                 If we keep on letting this

         25  proposition go on we are in big trouble. And when
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          2  the City sits on the other side of the table, and

          3  mention that this company that they all are dealing

          4  with does not handle what we are handling, and they

          5  still us they are going to still give it to them --

          6  I did a little research a couple of days ago and

          7  found out that the employees at Angelica do not even

          8  have the right equipment to do the work to handle

          9  the 60 million pounds of linen. They do not have the

         10  garments, they do not wear face masks, they do not

         11  have gloves. They are working with their bare hands.

         12  When you ask them about the health code in there,

         13  they cannot answer it, because they told me in the

         14  City they don't care about their health, they don't

         15  care how much they make. So, they don't care nothing

         16  about their employees of Angelica. They don't care

         17  if they drop on the job.

         18                 You know, somewhere along the line, I

         19  understand that you all are just a small panel, a

         20  small group of people, but if we could get everybody

         21  in one room at one time and specify our thoughts to

         22  everybody at one time, I believe we could get a

         23  positive reaction from everybody and let them know

         24  that the Brooklyn Central Laundry should not go

         25  nowhere, to stay right there, because we are the
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          2  best, we do the best, we are the best there is to do

          3  the job.

          4                 So, we need to stay, we need to keep

          5  the business here, and I am sick and tired of

          6  hearing everybody come in from Health and Hospitals

          7  Corporation talk about they got to save a dollar, we

          8  are here to save a life. And the lives we are saving

          9  is the workers that work at Brooklyn Central

         10  Laundry, because we have friends and colleagues that

         11  work there that gave their lives so we could stay

         12  there and do our job to support and put clean linen

         13  in every hospital in New York City.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Before you go on,

         16  is Andy in the room. Where is Andy? He just stepped

         17  out. Would you have him come in? Because when he

         18  comes back in the room I have something to say to

         19  him. Because I heard what you said and I am going to

         20  tell you exactly how you are going to do it and you

         21  are going to meet with every one of us, all 51, and

         22  I will tell you how. And that is why you have a

         23  lobbyist, let him do your job.

         24                 MR. WHITE: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Who else is
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          2  speaking?

          3                 MR. GORELICK: Good afternoon. My name

          4  is Sol Gorelick, and I am going to try to be brief,

          5  but I have to tell you who I am.

          6                 I am here representing not only the

          7  Retirees Association of DC 37, as Vice President for

          8  Health Services, I am here also representing the

          9  Brooklynwide Interagency Council on Aging, because

         10  we are concerned about older people are treated in

         11  the hospitals.

         12                 I am also here representing the Coney

         13  Island Hospital Coalition, which you have heard from

         14  before at previous hearings, particularly Georgianna

         15  Dietz, you may remember her. And I am also here as a

         16  member of the Coney Island Hospital Advisory Board,

         17  and with all of that I also represent 40 years of

         18  working for the City and being a trade unionist

         19  since the 1940s. And what I want to say is that I

         20  share the feeling about unity and about carrying on

         21  a fight, rather than soft scoping it.

         22                 I have a simple definition of the

         23  situation, it is good versus evil. It is the City

         24  Council versus the Mayor, and I don't want to talk

         25  so much about the HHC Board because they are just

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            31

          1  HEALTH PUBLIC SESSION

          2  stooges. The Mayor is a person who on principle and

          3  because he is a very poor administrator doesn't want

          4  to have anything to do with administering services.

          5  So, philosophically, I feel we are dealing with a

          6  devilish kind of opponent, and since we are

          7  considering life versus death, I would like to bring

          8  out just one part of the detailed message you have

          9  already heard, and that is, providing care for the

         10  uninsured.

         11                 In Coney Island Hospital there is no

         12  City money for the uninsured. There is a loss of $37

         13  million a year, that is the cost of the care for the

         14  uninsured, the uncompensated care, and $14 million

         15  more, based on what the Governor wants to hand down.

         16                 Where is that treatment expense

         17  coming from? The Mayor is trying to squeeze it out

         18  of the other operations. But he is just failing in

         19  his duty, and unless the City Council, together with

         20  those who support what is presented here by the

         21  Chair of the Health Committee, work together very

         22  actively, much harder than we have until now, then

         23  we will achieve the results.

         24                 The key for action is reaching

         25  everyone who needs to be involved, and one
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          2  contribution that I can make, there is a new member

          3  of your body, a new member to the City Council

          4  recently elected, Mike Nelson, he needs education

          5  and health. I am going to give it to him. I spoke to

          6  him just this morning and the issues that have been

          7  discussed here, he may be a member of the Health

          8  Committee or may not be but he is going to be

          9  involved. And I request in terms of via united

         10  action that you help him get adjusted to his new

         11  position and get to see that what we are about is

         12  health care as a right, as a human right, versus

         13  those who put profit and money above people, it is

         14  as simple as that.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me just say

         17  as the Chair of this Committee, and I dare say when

         18  I became the Chair there were ten new members that

         19  became members of this body and I said to them and I

         20  say to any member, not only the one from Brooklyn

         21  but the one from Manhattan, and even the Republican

         22  from Staten Island that this chair will work with

         23  anybody, but I am not chasing them.

         24                 Second, I think I know how HHC works.

         25  You see you have a Council member who physically the
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          2  institution falls in, but then you have networks and

          3  catchment areas, and community advisory boards, and

          4  in those boards you are supposed to have the

          5  community boards represented. There are too many

          6  layers that I do not have the time, because I only

          7  have three years left, I may be a lame duck, but not

          8  a dead duck, and I intend to have this Committee go

          9  back to what it is supposed to do in its mission -

         10  address health care needs.

         11                 So, I welcome any member of the

         12  Council who is assigned to this Committee, or any

         13  member who has interest because a vested interest of

         14  the people they represent. But I want to be clear

         15  and I want to be fair to all of my colleagues, if

         16  you don't get 26 votes, then it is like, you know,

         17  opening up a window and let the air out, and I am

         18  telling you, sir, and Madame, ladies and gentlemen,

         19  what you need to do is hold accountable everybody,

         20  those who do represent you physically, those who

         21  represent you, whether it is in the catchment

         22  network, and by the way, those of you who are

         23  workers, those who you either physically either vote

         24  for or you don't. And when you don't, you still have

         25  to deal with them anyway until they are up for

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            34

          1  HEALTH PUBLIC SESSION

          2  reelection again.

          3                 So, all I am saying to you is this

          4  Committee, this Council continues to pledge to work

          5  with you. I just don't want to give the impression,

          6  because the place is packed and after you all leave,

          7  like they did with the Police Department, it gets

          8  emptied -- you know, I am going to say something,

          9  and I will get into trouble. I want to see how many

         10  CABs, how many Community Advisory Boards, are going

         11  to be right here today testifying representing their

         12  hospitals. After you leave I want to see how many

         13  people are left.

         14                 Do you understand where I am coming

         15  from? You know, Douglas said it before we were all

         16  born, "power concedes nothing. It never has, never

         17  will, without demands or struggles."

         18                 So, I am not going to sit here and

         19  listen to all of the same typical rhetoric that I

         20  constantly hear, power, power, power -- excuse me.

         21  Nobody gives to us what is rightfully ours, unless

         22  we do it ourselves. That is all I am saying. Please,

         23  please, please.

         24                 So, having said that, anybody else?

         25                 MR. GORELICK: May I add one word? An
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          2  additional job that you and we share, and that is,

          3  to change the make-up of the Health and Hospitals

          4  Corporation, it is a New York State legislative

          5  creation, as long as one person, the Mayor of the

          6  City of New York, appoints the entire Board, we are

          7  dead.

          8                 So, I would suggest --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me just say,

         10  in fairness to not this Mayor, any mayor, I must

         11  tell you that there are five members who the Council

         12  puts on that board.

         13                 MR. GORELICK: That's true.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Every borough,

         15  through the borough delegation, so it is not just

         16  the Mayor.

         17                 MR. GORELICK: And thank God for that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But I also want

         19  to say, let me say, you are in Albany now, remember

         20  that bill that every year I keep telling you all to

         21  work on? The bill that says that when we created the

         22  Charter change, everything said the Board of

         23  Estimate. They are dead. Yet, we still are trying to

         24  get a bill up in Albany that says, wherever you had

         25  the Board of Estimate making decisions, put the
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          2  Council.

          3                 Let me tell you something, if you

          4  passed that bill in Albany, if it gets passed in the

          5  assembly, which it still has not been passed,

          6  because then I will worry about the senate, then you

          7  won't have to worry about privatization, because

          8  anything they do with City property has to come

          9  through the Land Use Committee of the Council. But I

         10  am frustrated, before I became chairman, that we

         11  have been talking about this bill for three years,

         12  and it is still stuck in Albany. And all we want

         13  done is, we didn't say do away with the Board, do

         14  away with the Board of Directors, all we are saying

         15  is, oh, you made a mistake. When we did the Charter

         16  and you changed things around, and you gave power to

         17  us under the land use, you forgot to also correct

         18  wherever the Board of Estimate was the thing, now

         19  put the Council. And I repeat, if you do that in

         20  Albany, then we won't have to be in court.

         21                 So, yes, we need to start doing what

         22  we are supposed to do, and not only here, up there.

         23  You are right, they are creatures of the state,

         24  don't expect me to change the Board of Directors of

         25  HHC, it is not going to happen.
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          2                 MR. GORELICK: No. May I finish my

          3  thought --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

          5                 MR. GORELICK: Because our

          6  coalition is part of the lawsuit that has been heard

          7  by the Court of Appeals --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I am not

          9  questioning that, sir.

         10                 MR. GORELICK: But the added dimension

         11  to what you have said is to try to get the law which

         12  is already proposed to give additional authorities

         13  the power to appoint members of the Board of

         14  Directors while it is presently there. And that,

         15  maybe not everybody gets excited about that, it is

         16  not very dramatic, but we feel in the present

         17  atmosphere it is possible to use this bill to limit

         18  or clip the wings of the current power that we are

         19  dealing with.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Do you know who

         21  proposed that bill?

         22                 MR. GORELICK: No, I don't.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you. I

         24  think we should do that homework first. Because that

         25  came about because the Council, along with
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          2  community-based organizations, proposed and the

          3  Speaker in Albany submitted a bill, the Speaker's

          4  bill, to change what you said, is not your bill, it

          5  is the Council's bill.

          6                 My frustration is we did what we are

          7  supposed to do. Where is the lobbying? So we are

          8  with you, but please don't expect us to do it. We

          9  are here, we are fighting, trying to get you money.

         10  They are going to end, they are going to pass a

         11  budget by Thursday -- from what I hear, the

         12  Assembly, is ready to pass its own budget by

         13  Thursday.

         14                 After you pass the budget then what

         15  do you want?

         16                 Okay, anyway --

         17                 MR. GORELICK: We certainly keep

         18  agreeing with each other, so we keep working

         19  together.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: This is what I am

         21  hearing. Good.

         22                 Anything else? Thank you so much.

         23                 MR. MAQUBELA: Thomas Dawes, Judy

         24  Wessler, Kay Dunham, and Rosequell Boston.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Before you leave,
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          2  Andy, one of your people made a fantastic

          3  suggestion, and you are the lobbyist. You are the

          4  guy that I deal with constantly. May I suggest that

          5  you make contact with Herb Berman, who is the

          6  liaison to the Brooklyn Delegation, that you make

          7  contact with June Eisland, who is the liaison of the

          8  Bronx Delegation, that you make contact with Archie

          9  Spigner who is the Queens liaison to the Queens

         10  Delegation, that you make contact with Stan Michels

         11  who is the Manhattan Liaison to the Manhattan

         12  Delegation, and by the way, even if it is a one-man

         13  shop, don't exclude Jay O'Donovan, who is the

         14  one-man liaison of the Staten Island Delegation, so

         15  that the central laundry issue will be lobbied in

         16  the delegation so that I don't need to and the

         17  members here chase my colleagues, and this way you

         18  go directly because I know they are ready and I know

         19  every has their own hearings, I believe, right,

         20  Phil? So that when they discuss the Borough

         21  Delegation, that on those hearings your issues are

         22  on the table, okay?

         23                 MR. INGLESBY: Council Member Robles,

         24  thank you very much. For the record, Andy Inglesby,

         25  Political Action and Legislation Department, DC 37.
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          2                 We have contacted every Council

          3  Member via letter, via member phone calls, and we

          4  will be continuing to do that through the process.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: That is not my

          6  question. That is not my suggestion.

          7                 My suggestion is, reach out to the

          8  liasons of the delegations, because what was asked

          9  was for them to come before the delegations. So that

         10  when the budget and all is said and done, I am not

         11  talking about Central Laundry, I am talking about

         12  HHC, okay? Subsidy, that we can get three out of

         13  five delegations to put the money where their mouth

         14  is. That is all I am saying.

         15                 MR. INGLESBY: Absolutely.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         17                 MR. INGLESBY: We will take care of

         18  those at those meetings.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you.

         20                 Judy, do you want to identify

         21  yourself for the record, please.

         22                 And I need not once again thank you,

         23  because I must say that you are the one person that

         24  I rely upon morning, noon and night, and I get more

         25  information from you than a lot of other folks.
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          2                 Go ahead.

          3                 MS. WESSLER: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          4                 Judy Wessler, Policy Coordinator for

          5  the Commission on the Public's Health System.

          6                 I want to add to what the Council

          7  Members have been saying, that we appreciate that

          8  District Council 37 will now be out there, because

          9  we have felt lonely lobbying for money for HHC, and

         10  not always have the support and also the

         11  legislation.

         12                 Sitting in the other room was very

         13  frustrating. And you know, not being able to say, I

         14  can't believe that Dr. Marcos actually believes that

         15  there is no impact on patient care, and with all of

         16  the layoffs and stuff that everything is just hunky

         17  dory and it is just very, very disturbing to sit

         18  through that and my friend here is saying yes she is

         19  agreeing.

         20                 We know about, I have long testimony

         21  but I just want to read parts of it, we know about

         22  the uninsured, we know that people are having more

         23  trouble getting access to care. We know that HHC is

         24  not staffed up the way it needs to be, we know that

         25  there are threats to certain services and potential
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          2  closings at this point, and you know, we will be

          3  feeding you, Mr. Chair, the specific information on

          4  that.

          5                 But you know, I listened to Dr.

          6  Marcos say that there was a gubernatorial proposal

          7  that they tried to get money from the state and that

          8  the City was putting up money to match. Well, the

          9  City could have put that money into HHC whether or

         10  not it was matched by the feds, and we need to ask

         11  how come the City didn't put in that $50 million and

         12  why, they insist it has to be matched. The real

         13  reason is that the City wasn't going to put that

         14  money in. It was just going to be federal money and

         15  then the City was going to walk away with that money

         16  in its pocket. But that is the kind of thing that we

         17  have to follow up on.

         18                 We know that there is no money in the

         19  HHC budget as of now, and I am glad that this was

         20  raised, for care for the uninsured. There is the

         21  opportunity with the tobacco settlement money, which

         22  was gotten because of health care, that that money,

         23  a portion of that money could be used when it starts

         24  coming in hopefully next year for funding care for

         25  the uninsured, and we will be very much supporting
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          2  efforts to do that, both at the state level and at

          3  the City level. The City will be getting money and

          4  they are talking about using it and I am afraid the

          5  City Council leadership or the Speaker also talked

          6  about using that money for school construction, but

          7  really a portion of it needs to go for health care

          8  and we have to be out there fighting on that.

          9                 The Governor's proposed cuts will be

         10  a problem, but even before those cuts, there is, as

         11  you heard, losses in the jobs, and not all of those

         12  400 that are gone so far are lost through attrition

         13  that actually have been people laid off. They are

         14  not union employees, they are what are called group

         15  12, but they also perform very important functions.

         16  But at several of the hospitals there have already

         17  been layoffs here of those titles. So, I would hope

         18  that we would look at that more.

         19                 I have a lot of stuff about the

         20  Health Department, I will just submit that in

         21  writing, but I do want to say, and I was very

         22  pleased that Council Member Reed raised the question

         23  about the Manhattanville Child Health Clinic, and

         24  that there has been concerns raised about what is

         25  going to happen with the Health Department
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          2  facilities that were transferred to the Health and

          3  Hospitals Corporation. This is a highly utilized

          4  child health clinic, the Council has put $10 million

          5  into HHC's budget to keep the 39 clinics open and

          6  ready and available. You know, at first HHC was

          7  saying the building was structurally unsound. When

          8  we said that sounds like Neponsit, they pulled off

          9  that. You know, then they said it would be a

         10  temporary location, and now they are talking really

         11  about closing that child's health clinic.

         12                 There are other services in that

         13  building, it is a Health Department building, there

         14  is a prenatal care program, there is a dental

         15  program, there is STD program, there is an AIDs

         16  counseling program, none of those are being told

         17  that they have to move, but the child health clinic

         18  is being moved out.

         19                 There are a lot of people in the

         20  community that are very concerned about that. Mr.

         21  James Portas is here, if you would like to -- I

         22  don't think he has had a chance to sign up.

         23                 But you know, we have been lied to,

         24  and now today again, even the letter that was sent

         25  to Council Member Michels said they want to close it
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          2  because of vermin. Well, that is not what the

          3  problem is. There is a problem with a leak, and

          4  there is a problem with the windows, and they have

          5  been promising to fix those over a period of five,

          6  six years and never did and now they are saying

          7  there is vermin in that building.

          8                 I was there and I didn't see vermin.

          9  And there are parts of the building that are in

         10  better shape that could be used for the child health

         11  clinic so they don't have to be moved out.

         12                 This really seems to be an effort to

         13  start whittling away the number of child health

         14  clinics that HHC runs, and we are very, very

         15  concerned about that.

         16                 Again, the Council has been

         17  tremendous in supporting the child health clinics

         18  and putting money into the HHC budget for them, but

         19  if they are going to continue to whittle them away,

         20  if HHC wants to close them, we are going to be in

         21  serious trouble.

         22                 I want to end by saying that we are

         23  very pleased to hear, and we have supported the idea

         24  of the EMS being moved back to oversight to the

         25  Health Committee, with the other health agencies. It
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          2  makes a lot of sense and we did support it and we

          3  are very pleased to hear that that is happening.

          4                 Again, I have lots of concerns that

          5  were lifted about what is happening in the Health

          6  Department budget and we were unable to testify the

          7  other day, but if you have any questions about that,

          8  I would be happy to respond.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, why don't

         11  we just let everybody, and then I do have some

         12  questions.

         13                 Ladies first. Go ahead. Push the

         14  button.

         15                 MS. BOSTON: I am Rosquell Boston and

         16  I am employed at the Brooklyn Central Laundry, and

         17  as I was sitting in the room at the hearing

         18  listening to Dr. Marcos, I remember a few days ago

         19  he said that the Brooklyn Central Laundry will be

         20  closed, and as I listened to that I couldn't imagine

         21  how he could say that already.

         22                 I mean, had he really sold it? You

         23  know, I got confused about that.

         24                 But I would say that Brooklyn Central

         25  Laundry can be saved and will be saved, but Dr.
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          2  Marcos has to play a big part in that.

          3                 I wish he could come out some time,

          4  Dr. Marcos, and just walk around Brooklyn Central

          5  Laundry and look around and see what the employees

          6  are doing, and investigate and find out. He needs to

          7  come to Brooklyn Central Laundry and do his

          8  investigations. I see him once in awhile, maybe

          9  twice every two years or every year, he comes in and

         10  out of Mr. Smith's office, flying like a windsong,

         11  but I think he should come and observe the employees

         12  and I think Dr. Marcos, if there is a God, and I

         13  know there is a God in heaven, and I am praying that

         14  Brooklyn Central Laundry employees will succeed in

         15  the hospital.

         16                 I believe that it is going to be

         17  there. Not only Brooklyn Central Laundry, but I

         18  believe, I have great faith, that the hospitals also

         19  will survive.

         20                 Thank you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 MS. DUNHAM: Good afternoon, everyone.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Push your button,

         25  please.
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          2                 MS. DUNHAM: Good afternoon, everyone.

          3  I am Kay Roberts Dunham. I am concerned about the

          4  lack of a budget for union up in the Bronx.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I am sorry, say

          6  that again. A lack of what?

          7                 MS. DUNHAM: A budget.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: For?

          9                 MS. DUNHAM: Union. It seems when I

         10  checked the Health and Hospitals Corporation budget,

         11  maybe it is a diagnostic center, but there was no

         12  budget, a $4 million budget up in the Bronx, on

         13  Neponsit Nursing Home, the fact that it was closed,

         14  and I think that they should see to it that a

         15  nursing home is returned to Queens.

         16                 I am against privatization for any of

         17  the hospitals, any of the HHC hospitals, and I am

         18  concerned about the Kings County laundry. I live in

         19  the Community Board 9 area, so I am not too far away

         20  from the laundry, and I have civilian patrolled

         21  there.

         22                 And one of the things I do want to

         23  bring to your attention, and I hope the workers or

         24  you will be able to clear it up to supervise it, is

         25  that someone came to me to say there is a nursing
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          2  home that is complaining that the linen, you know,

          3  if they give us a certain amount of laundry, they

          4  are not getting it back. So, maybe to protect

          5  yourselves you may have to make sure you check how

          6  much laundry you are getting from a particular

          7  nursing, it is a nursing home and I think they are

          8  in Brooklyn. They are the ones that are doing some

          9  complaining.

         10                 I am on the Coney Island Hospital

         11  Coalition, and did attend the Albany appeal,

         12  February 16th for the Coney Island Hospital, and the

         13  Queens appeal for two Queens hospitals, and I am

         14  hoping that, you know, the decision we are waiting

         15  for will be in our favor, because we have tried very

         16  hard to keep the services up for the people in the

         17  City. Really all we really want to do is make sure

         18  that if someone is sick, you know, that they know

         19  that they can go to their hospitals and the care

         20  will be delivered for them.

         21                 And that the Administration is really

         22  trying to do a job to keep the costs down. We don't

         23  want you to send in billions of dollars and yet and

         24  still the money is not being managed properly.

         25                 We want to know that the hospitals
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          2  are being managed properly and there is a reduction

          3  of waste everywhere, and we don't want to know that

          4  there is so much staff displaced. There was

          5  displacement in the Neponsit Nursing Home and in

          6  fact that they have to travel, you know, they

          7  complained about the travel hardship that was

          8  created upon them when they were no longer there and

          9  the patients were displaced.

         10                 So, I am just trying to do the best

         11  thing that I can do to bring about good quality

         12  health care for the people of the City of New York.

         13  And I don't feel that the Council members of the

         14  Council or the state legislature should be denied

         15  the right to have something to say about what

         16  transpires with the Mayor and the Health and

         17  Hospitals Corporation. Because that was a part of

         18  the case when we were up in Albany.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you.

         20                 MR. DAWES: Hello. My name is Tom

         21  Dawes. I am the organizing director for the

         22  Committee for Real Change in District Council 37.

         23                 I come here today to make a very

         24  brief statement on behalf of the CRC, and then I

         25  shall simply speak unofficially as a citizen of this
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          2  area about this problem.

          3                 The Committee for Real Change in DC

          4  37 is the new blood and the new spirit that you

          5  referred to, Mr. Robles, earlier.

          6                 We are the organization that shook up

          7  DC 37. One of our primary issues was the assault on

          8  HHC.

          9                 The participants in the Committee for

         10  Real Change, a primary motivator for us to come

         11  together was the unrelenting assault by Rudy

         12  Giuliani on HHC.

         13                 We believed that a new approach

         14  needed to be taken by DC 37 on this issue. We came

         15  together, we discussed it, we came up with a

         16  program, and the Committee for Real Change Program

         17  states very clearly no privatization in HHC, no

         18  layoffs of HHC workers, and this is a primary focus

         19  of our rank and file organization.

         20                 I want to note that the CRC is not an

         21  official DC 37 organization, but we are an

         22  organization of AFSCME union members. All of us are

         23  AFSCME union members who work for the City. I myself

         24  am an AFSCME union member who was a staff employee.

         25                 We are proud that we are members of
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          2  an international, headed by Jerrold McIntey. Jerrold

          3  McIntey has been a national voice against

          4  privatization. He has come to this City and stated

          5  very clearly to Mayor Rudy Giuliani, if you have

          6  higher political aspirations, you have to go through

          7  us because we challenge you head on on the

          8  privatization of HHC.

          9                 We are proud of the fact that our

         10  international all across this country is leading the

         11  role in the fight on the assault on the public

         12  sector that is occurring not just in New York State

         13  but all across the country.

         14                 So, as we organized and made use of

         15  the AFSCME bill of rights for union members, we

         16  found that we -- we found a sympathetic voice among

         17  HHC workers, and we were able to have quite an

         18  impact on the structure of DC 37.

         19                 One of our basic goals is one person,

         20  one vote. So we have an Executive Director, who when

         21  he gives the order for a demonstration against the

         22  layoffs, every local is there. Every local is there

         23  with turnout, and if they are not, they should be

         24  confronted as to why they are not there.

         25                 Okay, now that is all I want to say
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          2  for the CRC. We did meet, as I said, the Executive

          3  Board last night, we discussed the issue and the CRC

          4  executive board wanted to come out and show their

          5  support for the 420 workers. As the CRC has done

          6  last April, last April 16th, the October

          7  demonstration, the August demonstration, if you

          8  looked around those demonstrations, you would see

          9  the Committee for Real Change activists and

         10  presidents there in solidarity with you.

         11                 Now, I have a minute left. Now I just

         12  want to talk about as Tom Dawes as American citizen.

         13  I just want to say, I grew up in Baltimore County,

         14  Maryland, I am not from this area. I am just a

         15  country boy from Maryland. The first black folks

         16  that I met were in a hospital kitchen in 1968. I

         17  grew up in a segregated, typical American segregated

         18  suburban environment. My job in high school was in a

         19  kitchen of St. Joseph's Hospital.  That was the

         20  first place that I really had contact with black

         21  folk in America. And it was there that I learned

         22  about the two different worlds in America, the white

         23  world basically and the black world. And I was also

         24  an alter boy in my church, I am wearing a Southern

         25  Christian Leadership Pin right here. This Southern
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          2  Christian Leadership Conference Pin was given to me

          3  in 1968 by a reverend in my church who came back

          4  from the south and said that he had gotten this, he

          5  said he had gotten it directly from Martin Luther

          6  King, I don't know if that was true or not. But I

          7  just want to say that this struggle, Victor Robles,

          8  I am glad that you mentioned Frederick Douglas,

          9  because this is a Civil War struggle, this is a

         10  struggle for the soul of our City, and I am happy,

         11  as Sol said a few moments ago, earlier, when he said

         12  there is a new fire in DC 37 -- there is a new fire

         13  in DC 37, and it is a fire that is going to burn

         14  through this City and it is a fire that is going to

         15  be -- what is it going to -- you heard the fellow

         16  that worked in the laundry, his anger, his fury at

         17  the understand, that fire is going to burn. And I

         18  know that the new trustee Lee Saunders, he is going

         19  to make his mark at mobilizing our members, all of

         20  our members, to come out in support of our brothers

         21  and sisters in 420. Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 Especially to Judy, because I deal

         25  with her a lot, and let me just tell you and share
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          2  with you, first of all, please understand that

          3  Manhattanville Health Clinic, the building itself is

          4  a DOH building. When I got a report before the

          5  hearing that tells me that we have money in the

          6  budget, since Fiscal Year 1990, it troubles me.

          7  Although I have been the Chair for one whole year,

          8  that something like that, especially when

          9  Commissioner Neal Cohen came before us, that is

         10  where certain people should have been. I am troubled

         11  by that, and that is the problem I have around here,

         12  not on this end, on this end. Because I think the

         13  days of when you know and hear a lot of people are

         14  coming then they all become your friends. But after

         15  you leave, somehow those issues that can be

         16  addressed are not being addressed.

         17                 So, at least the one thing I can do,

         18  since now I know it, is to get the Corporation to

         19  put in writing that when it is all said and done,

         20  they are coming back there.

         21                 There is something wrong, because I

         22  know the way you all work, that everybody knew it

         23  was coming, it was coming and all of a sudden now

         24  when they close the door, now everybody was talking

         25  about it.
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          2                 Second, it blows my mind, when

          3  Commissioner Neal Cohen is the Commissioner Health,

          4  who by the way is also the Commissioner of Mental

          5  Health too, he also sits on the Health and Hospitals

          6  Corporation as a Board member. Oh, and by the way,

          7  he is the Chairman of a Quality Assurance Committee.

          8                 MS. WESSLER: That's right.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And yet, talking

         10  about a health clinic, that although it may be HHC

         11  operationally, but is a DOH facility, and the money

         12  is still in that agency, but in DOH. And all we do

         13  is, that when the time comes HHC gives us a bill of

         14  how much money they spent, and then we take the

         15  money from DOH to put into HHC.

         16                 So, I want to be clear. And so I had

         17  to say that.

         18                 Now that I know the issue, I say to

         19  you respectfully, which I know you do, but even

         20  those, if you have any interest on that facility,

         21  there is a Manhattan Delegation, they don't make it

         22  a priority. Listen, I am going to worry about my

         23  Woodhull Hospital, let me tell you right now.

         24                 So, I just don't want to place

         25  anybody and embarrass anybody, but we need to talk
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          2  with each other, we need to talk with those who

          3  should be the squeaky wheel making noise, and then

          4  it becomes easy for me, as you know, to do these

          5  things.

          6                 So, having said that, I appreciate

          7  you all coming out, and unless there is anything

          8  else -- and before I forget, let me assure you,

          9  Madame, the only thing that we did and it is still

         10  there and so far we have been successful twice is

         11  that lawsuit which they cannot demolish -- they

         12  wanted to demolish that facility. But I must tell

         13  you --

         14                 MS. WESSLER: Neponsit.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And the only

         16  reason why it is not torn down is because there is a

         17  lawsuit that was joined and moved by the Council and

         18  so far we have been successful in two and it is

         19  being appealed, and hopefully the decision which is

         20  supposed to come within the next week or so, is

         21  whether or not the City of New York had that right.

         22                 But I also want to be clear, I heard

         23  from day one about how the federal government came

         24  in and in the newspaper it said for every day that

         25  you don't fix what you did, it is $3,000. And when I
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          2  asked Luis Marcos, from the time that they found you

          3  in violation, how much has the federal government

          4  taken from you, and his answer is zero, I have a

          5  problem with the federal government who comes in and

          6  says, oh, you are in violation but they do nothing.

          7                 So, I have to wrestle with that.

          8                 Judy, go ahead.

          9                 MS. WESSLER: Yes, Mr. Chair, you know

         10  there has been problems with that building, it is a

         11  Department of Health building. There have been

         12  problems with those buildings for years. It has been

         13  documented by the staff of the facility over and

         14  over and over again and now all of a sudden when

         15  there are budget problems in HHC, all of a sudden

         16  they have to come and close that clinic there.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         18                 MS. WESSLER: I mean, our suspicions

         19  now have -- the fact that there was money in the

         20  budget for all of those years in the Department of

         21  Health budget and they did not spend it to fix up

         22  that building, except what they think --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: It is not HHC.

         24  See, I want to be clear.

         25                 MS. WESSLER: Right.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Where we are

          3  addressing it, because the money was not put into

          4  HHC, the money was put into the Department of

          5  Health. And I must tell you, I went through that

          6  with Woodhull Hospital and 1420 Bushwick Avenue

          7  which is not in my district and where HHC is renting

          8  from a City building under HRA, we are not getting

          9  freebees, we are paying for it, and then our census

         10  was going down because the roof was leaking, and all

         11  of that stuff, and I am the one who said to Cynthia

         12  Carrington stop paying the rent.

         13                 MS. WESSLER: Right.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So I want to be

         15  clear where we should be focusing is on Commissioner

         16  Neal Cohen.

         17                 MS. WESSLER: I agree with you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Who by the way,

         19  sits on HHC too.

         20                 MS. WESSLER: I agree with you. And

         21  even more so because the Department of Health still

         22  has programs in that building which they are not

         23  moving.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Matt, you know

         25  something, and I am glad you still are here and I
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          2  see HHC here too, and you know me, I am a hands-on

          3  person, I want things done. At least I was led to

          4  believe that the reason why this Manhattanville

          5  Health Clinic was being closed was because it was so

          6  bad that it should not be there. But I just heard

          7  people tell me that there are other services in that

          8  building, and I want to know whether all services

          9  are being evacuated from that place, or is it just

         10  this HHC clinic? Because if that is the case, then

         11  why are we moving it?

         12                 But, see, those are the kind of

         13  things that if you don't start talking to those

         14  Council members and people to start sitting down and

         15  negotiating -- so, Matt, will you do me a favor? Can

         16  I get a status on that facility? Who is in there?

         17  What services, and if we are going to close it down

         18  to renovate and asbestos and I heard that too, then

         19  I want everybody out of there because asbestos does

         20  not only apply to the clinic, it applies to anybody

         21  going in there.

         22                 If everybody else is staying behind,

         23  then I need to know why they can stay and this one

         24  clinic has to move. And maybe I will get a handle.

         25  But I want to tell you this, this is the last time I
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          2  am going to do this, Judy. Because there are other

          3  people who should be addressing these things.

          4                 MS. WESSLER: Well, the Councilman in

          5  the area is Stan Michels and he has started to

          6  address it and that was the letter in response. So

          7  it is not that they are not.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: What I am saying

          9  is we should not get to that point where they are

         10  actually relocating. What I am hearing is somebody

         11  is being relocated, but I am also hearing that you

         12  are saying that somebody else is staying behind.

         13                 MS. WESSLER: And we found out about

         14  this two weeks ago.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, fine. We

         16  will deal with that.

         17                 MS. WESSLER: Okay.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Yes, Ma'am.

         19                 MS. BOSTON: I just want to make sure

         20  Luna Park is repaired early.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: What?

         22                 MS. BOSTON: Luna Park.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me be honest

         24  with you. You can say it, but you have to find out

         25  who the Councilperson is who represents that area,
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          2  because if that person doesn't bring it to my

          3  attention, then I don't even know what you are

          4  taking about.

          5                 MS. BOSTON: Oh.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I am from

          7  Brooklyn.

          8                 MS. BOSTON: I am from Brooklyn too.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Is this place in

         10  Brooklyn?

         11                 MS. BOSTON: Yes. Coney Island.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Where?

         13                 MS. BOSTON: Luna Park?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Yes, where?

         15                 MS. BOSTON: Coney island.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Good. I am not

         17  from Coney Island. I am from Williamsburg.

         18                 MS. BOSTON: I know where you are.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: What I am saying

         20  is, if the local Council people do not make it an

         21  issue, I wanted to tell you that I can't deal with

         22  it because I am not even aware of it.

         23                 MS. BOSTON: It may be Lasher, I don't

         24  know.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well, then I
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          2  suggest you reach out, and then if he needs any

          3  help, believe me, I am willing to work with him.

          4                 MS. BOSTON: I understand it now.

          5  Thank you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: You are quite

          7  welcome.

          8                 Seeing no other person to --

          9                 MS. LESOLD: I would like to speak.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Did you register?

         11                 MS LESOLD: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Come on up.

         13                 MS. LESOLD: Thank you very much. I

         14  will make this very brief. I know you are tired.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Just identify

         16  yourself for the record.

         17                 MS. LESOLD: I am Constance Lesold,

         18  and I am submitting this testimony on behalf of the

         19  Brooklyn Mental Hygiene Court Monitors Program. We

         20  have been monitoring --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Wait. Wait. Wait.

         22  Mental Health, sorry this is about --

         23                 MS. LESOLD: The Brooklyn Mental

         24  Health Court Monitors Program.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But the public
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          2  testified, because after Commissioner Neal Cohen

          3  made his testimony, the public -- that was the time.

          4  This is HHC.

          5                 MS. LESOLD: Well, we are monitoring a

          6  program in which we see patients coming from all of

          7  the public hospitals, Coney Island, Woodhull, Kings

          8  County, every week.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: All right,

         10  testify. But I must tell you --

         11                 MS. LESOLD: If I am in the wrong

         12  place, sorry.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, go ahead.

         14                 MS. LESOLD: Thank you. As I said, I

         15  would make it very brief.

         16                 Mainly what I want to do is submit to

         17  you the budget and legislative issue papers that

         18  cover the whole area of mental health practically,

         19  that recipients and providers are lobbying at the

         20  state level, which also touch on you, and I want to

         21  ask you not to approve in the budget through any

         22  Department money for outpatient commitment programs

         23  in New York City.

         24                 I will just read one very brief

         25  paragraph out of this total report and it will give
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          2  you our position after watching what has been

          3  happening in the courts and in the hospitals over a

          4  two-year period.

          5                 Dr. Courtney Hardings Landmark

          6  25-year study demonstrating that even the most

          7  severely and persistently mentally ill individuals

          8  could retain a full recovery if offered an approach

          9  that fostered self-sufficiently -- rehabilitation

         10  self sufficiency, rehabilitation and community

         11  integration as opposed to maintenance stabilization

         12  with medications and entitlements as the only goals.

         13                 Nonetheless, as Dr. Harding declares,

         14  I would propose that most community mental health

         15  centers have become just as sturdy institutions as

         16  the old state hospitals were.

         17                 The community mental health centers

         18  in the U.S. have chosen the medication management

         19  entitlement model of care, because that is what the

         20  feds pay for. Stabilization and maintenance are the

         21  goals. Such strategies promote and extend

         22  chronicity, which means more money in the long run.

         23                 The mental health system that

         24  predominantly numbs its client by relying

         25  excessively on high doses of medicine, abysmally low
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          2  expectations, little room for hope and smoke-filled

          3  treatment centers with all too few opportunities to

          4  play a meaningful or productive role is a system

          5  that frequently drives people either down or in the

          6  serious instances under discussion drives them away.

          7                 So, I ask you to please keep in mind

          8  all of this year, whether it is the Mayor's bill,

          9  the Governor's bill or who's bill, no outpatient

         10  commitment programs. It is only going to drive

         11  people away from getting help through our much

         12  needed public hospitals, which, yes, all of us want

         13  to see stay public.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me just say

         16  that, again, there is the Chair of the Subcommittee,

         17  which I know you know very well.

         18                 MS. LESOLD: I am well aware.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: You know

         20  something, I suggest you get a hold of her, because

         21  if anyone is going to lead the charge it had got to

         22  be her.

         23                 MS. LESOLD: We are talking with each

         24  other.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Fine.
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          2                 MS. LESOLD: I appreciate her

          3  interest.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: On this issue

          5  there were hearings for the Mental Health, which she

          6  presided and I presided. This is HHC, and I need to

          7  coordinate this, okay?

          8                 MS. LESOLD: Okay.

          9                 A few things are happening in the HHC

         10  facility.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: That is why I

         12  need you to make sure she understands, and I assure

         13  you that she will bring it to my attention and we

         14  will address it.

         15                 MS. LESOLD: Thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member

         17  Clarke. One second.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Connie, I know

         19  her work, even in the Brooklyn -- it is not jail --

         20  the courts, and if you have information, please make

         21  sure I know the whole issue around the

         22  outpatient/inpatient commitment, whatever the

         23  demonstration, and I am studying all of what the

         24  issues are, and I have put together a task force

         25  which is going to really be helping me with some of

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            68

          1  HEALTH PUBLIC SESSION

          2  the more ticklish issues on mental health. So, I

          3  very much welcome the information that you have.

          4                 MS. LESOLD: Well, thank you very

          5  much, and I am sure we can work together.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Seeing no further

          7  business before this Committee, I adjourn these

          8  hearings.

          9                 (Hearing concluded at 5:05 p.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 12th day of March 1999.

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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